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County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

1. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms
b) Acronyms

BOM Boatd of Management

ICPAK Instirute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards

PFM Public Finance Management

PSASB Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Kshs Kenya Shillings

IPSAS International Pubhc Sector Accountmg Standards

PFM Public Finance Management

CAE County Assembly of Embu

CASBE County Assembly Service Board of Embu

NT National Treasury

EACC Ethics and Antr-Corruprion Commission

COB Conttoller of Budget

PAC Public Accounts Commrttee

PIA Pnncipal Internal Auditor

FA Fund Admrrusttator

CA County Assembly

CoK Constirution of Kenya 2010

a) Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Management The key management petsonnel who had frrancial responsibility

Fund Admnistrator The person responsible for financial management of the fund
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of thc P

Fund

Assembly of Embu Car loan and Mortgage scheme fund is established pursuant to Section

FM Act and supplemented with the Salaries and Remuneration Commission (SRC) circular

cr SR /TS/WlL/3/1,4 of 14'r'February 201,4. The fund was established in 2014 as 2 funds i.e

( -oun tf Assembly of Embu Car [-oan (1r{embers) scheme fund and County Assembly of Embu

(ild.-b..s) Scheme fund and sepatate regulations for each fund were developed in 20'r'

1

agc

20

4r ' January 2

tions rvere

019, under the advisory from SRC the 2 funds rvere consolidated into 1 fund and nerv

developed accommodate the collapsing of these 2 funds into 1 fund. 'I'hese regulatrons

rcnamed as County r\ssembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Mcmbers) Scheme Fund

ations 2019.

0'r'November 2022 the regulauons were repealed again to accommodate the dynamic changes in

nd hence renamed County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund

Ir

tions 2022 rvhich are currently in forcc .

uod is rvholly orvned by the County Assembly of Embu and is domiciled in Kenya. The objectivc

d is to provide Car and Mortgage loans to MCAs to facilitate them in their toles as enshrined inll

o11s tl tlon

Pnncl I activity of the fund is to provide car loans and mortgage to Members of the County

blv affordable intercst rates in order to facilitate them buy or construct individual residcotial

C

h

a

c

u

pa

at

es and purchase cars for their use in order to serve their electorate efficiently.

on 167 of the Public Finance N{anagement ("FNQ Act 2012 mandates the Administrator of public

s wrth the responsibility of the preparation of annual financial statements. For proper management

fund

adop

and as advised by the SRC in the circular under the refetence, the County Assembly of

ted the PFM regulations 2074 to guide in the operationalization of the fund. As advised by

for under regulation 16 of the said regulations, the County Service Board

tution to manage the fund

ference SRC/ADM/CIR/1/13 Vol. III (128) dafed 17'r'December 2014

ded guidclines for access of car loan and mortgage benefits by state and public officers. Arising

from, the Counry Assembly Sewice Board approved and adopted.

'I 
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County Assembly of Enbu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Repon and Financial Statement for yeer ended 3Oh June, 2023
b) PtincipalActivities

The mandate of the fund is to provide car loans and mortgage to Members of thc County Asscmbly at

affordable interest rates in order to facilitate them buy or construct individual residential houscs and

purchase cars for their use in order to serve their electotate efficiently. The loans ate tecovered from

the member's salaries and allowances within their term of office.

c) Board of Ttustees/Fund Administration Committee

d) Key Management

e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

Chairman of the Committec1 Hon. Nyaga Peter Mureithi
Hon. N jiru Paul Muchangi N{cmber)

3 I{on Nzangi Phillip Kinyuru Mcmber
Nf ember+ Hon. Mbaka John Ngari

I Ion. Swaleh Ibrahim5

[ [on Iircd (]atr,rmu Nfcmber6

7 Hon. Munyambu John Irumo iUcmber

Nlcmbertt I{on. Githinji Daniel
Hon. N jued Jane Karimi Nlcmber9

Nlcmberl0 I-lon. Sammv Muturi
Hon. F-drvin N. N{ureithi Nlcmberll

Fund Administrator12 Jim G. IQuma

Fund Managet/ Administrator Jim G. KaumaI

James Munf Ircri.., Deputy/ Clerk
David Githaga llhvangi3 Fund Committee Clerk

Josiah Muhia I(aran ja+ Director Finance & Accounts

Moses Nlucangi Kataginva5 Director Human Resources Management

Bonifacc Muthomi(t Director Legal Services

Kamau \\'achiuril Principal Finance Officer

CPA Stephen KisoiI Principal Internal Auditor
Hon. Josiah Thiriku (Chairperson)CASBE
CS I Iellen Mungania (Chairperson)3 CAE Audit Committee
Hon. Paul N{uchangi (Chairperson)+ PAC

f) Rcgistered Offices

R

N{cmber

i{.j t
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ty Asscmbly of Embu Chambers

p Valley Area alongJames Nyaga Crescent road - Opposite Faith House

lloxl -10-60100

U, KENYA

u ontacts

one: (25.1) 0682231208

I counryassemblyofembu@gmail.com

e: wwrv.embuassemblv.po.kc

ankers

Family Bank Kenya - Embu Branch

Winas Sacco - EMBU

ndent Auditors

.r\u r General - Office of the Auditor General

rsary Towers, University Way

\\,

u

I

l) x 30084- GPO 00100

N OBI, KENYA

P al Legal Adviser

torney General

S arv Office- Harambcc Avenue

ox 40112 - City Square 00200P.

N

C Attorney

BI, KE\I'YA.

tor, Litigation, Legal Compliance and Legrslative Drafting,

Assembly of Embu(l
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County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

3. THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES/ FUND ADMINISTI(A*TION COMMITTEE

NAME IOBTETMOFQUALIFICATIONSAND
EXPERIENCE

MCA- I{rimari Ward

Date of Birth: 4e Novctnber 1973

Deputy Speaker

Chairman Liaison Committee

Hon. Niitu Paul Muchangi

MCA - Garuri North

Date of Birth : 12'hApril 1981

Chairperson Public Accounts and Investment

Member Mortgage and car loan fund

MCA - Mamria Ward

Date of Birth: 1"January 1970

Leadcr of N{rnority Parrl

Member Car loan and Mortgage fund

ommittee

IJ
I
I

f,
I

IJon. Mbaka John Ngatr

v t

Hon. Peter Nvaga Muriithi.

..-.t

MCA- Mbeti North Ward.

Date of Birth : 1"January 1958

Leader of Majority Party

Chairman Car loan and Mortgage fund.

Vice Chairperson - County Assembly Service Board

Chairperson Car Loan and MottgageCommittee

N{ember Mortgage and car loan fund

t

Hon. Swaleh Ibrahim

I



Co ty Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
An ual RePot't and Financial Statement fot yeat ended 3Oh June, 2023

MCA - Gaturi South

] 
Hon. Gatumtr F-redrick Mugencti

] o"t. of ni.tt : 18'r'september 1983

I

Chairperson Ward Equalization Committee

Member Car loan and Mottgage fund

MCA - Makima Ward

Date of Birth 12'r'December 1978

Chairperson - Administration Committee

Member Speaker's Panel

Member Mortgage and cat loan fund

MCA - Mwea Nflard

Date of Birth : 31" May 7972

Chairperson Health Committee

Member Mortgage and car loan fund

Date of llirth 9'r' Dcccmber 1988

Member Mortgage and car loan fund

FIon. Philip Kinyutu Nzangi

Hon. l\f unvambu Job Itumo

Hon. Githinf i Daniel

MCA - Nominated

I

e

IU
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County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

I rltca - Runyen jes Ward

I Ion. Edrvin N. Murcithi

Hon. Niued Jane Kadmi

I lon. I-Iarrison Mutrrri

r

Date Of Birth : 22"'t J:uly 1987

Chairperson Road, Transport and Pubhc Works

Member Car loan and Mortgage fund

Nominated MCA

Date of Bitth: 13'h May 1978

Member Mottgage and car loan fund

Member of the Speaker's Panel

NICA - Ruguru Ngandori

Date of Birth 17th October 1982

Member Car loan and Nlortgage fund

rc"".* Art*rr.tbly CI.tk

Date of birth: 19th September 1981

Master's degree in Public Pohcy and r\dministratiorr

Fund Administrator

..tr

x

MrJim G. Kauma

,
Wa

.a

\

I
,/

+ BE-

t-

E

xr



Cotnty Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
An4ual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Ot'June, 2023

4. MANAGEMENT TEAM.

Name: Mr. Jim G. Gitonga.

Date of Birth: 19th September 1981

Designation: County Assemblv Clerk

Qualification:
Master's degrce in Public Policy and Administtation

Fund administrator.

Name: Mr. James Munyi Iren

Date of Birth: 7'r' February 1980

Designation: County Assembly Deputy Clerk

Qualification: Bachelor of science

Name: CPA Josiah Muhia Karunia

Date of Birth: 1" July 1 975

Designation: Director ltnancial and accounting services

Qualification: B/Comm. CPA(K) CPS (K)
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Name: Mr David Mwangi Githaga

Date of Birth: 22"n June 1970

Designation: Director Legislative and Procedural and committee
Services

Qualification: Bachelors of Arts @A)

Fund Committee Clerk



County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Repon and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

Name: Mr. Boniface Muthomt

Date of Birth: 10'h May 1985

Designation: Director, Utigation,
Legislative Drafting.

Quali6cation: Bachelor of Laws.

lcgal compliancc ancl

Name: Mr. Moses Mucangi Karagirwa

Date of Birth: 21" August 1 967

Designation: Director, Director Human Resource Managemcnt

Qualification: MSC, Human Resource Management.

Name: CPA. Kamau Wachiuri

Date of Birth: 7"'Mary 1972

Designation: Princtpal Finance Officer

Qualificauon: MSc ftnance and accounting, CPA(K)

Fund accountant.
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Changes in the Fund during the year (in terms of the board ot key management team)

oard of trustees has conunued to perform its distinct functions to achieve thc objectives of the

, In the Financial year under review there were no changes in the management of the fund and also

key management team.

lr

C\\

l)

I of the Fund's petformance

,.rformance has been vibrant in the year. AII the 31 MCAs and 2 members of the County

rvice Board have already received the Car loans and Mottgage and are currently repayingS C

g had

o1- tlrc

A

s schcduled

onclusion

u outlook of the Fund

the fund run by Family Bank the County assembly has decided to run the fund internally in-ordcr

e following;

a) Accurate and reliable financial reporting

b) Quick transparent disbursement of loan

.) Reduced costs of operational costs of the fund

tirnd as a sound financial base and is expected to remain financially viable in fururc with ploughing

interests earned from the disbursed loans to members.

i

c

h

e

fund has continued to exercise its mandate of ensuring that the MCAs get car and Mortgage loans

interest rates to facilitate them in their legislative, oversight and representation roles.'I'his

as a positive motivation effect on MCAs who have been able to serve the citizen in an

vIn ho e that the fund we continue to exercise its mandate in future

N ER G MURIITHI

P

x t

SIGN:

CHAIRMAN. CAR LOAN AND MORIGAGE COMMITTEE



County Assembly of Embu Cat Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Repon and Financial Statement fot year ended 3Oh June, 2023

6. REPORT OFTHE FUND ADMINISTRATOR

It is my pleasure to present the County Assembly of Embu Mortgage and Car loan Fund Frnancial

statements for the 12 months ended 30'nJ.rn e, 2023. The financial statements present the financial

performance of the fund over the past twelve months. It's worth noting that the fund started in IrY

2013/2014 and has condnued disbursing loans to the Members of the County Assembly at very lorv

r\nnual interest ntes of 3o/o to facilitate them buy cars and construct residential houses.

The budget petformance

The fund was established and started with an initial amount of Kshs 165,000'000 rvhich rvas deposited

at Family bank Embu Btanch in 2014.

Incomes

The fund received Kshs 89,000,000 from County Revenue Fund against a budget of Kshs. 90,000,000.

The amounts were received in three tranches of Kshs. 35,000,000 in December 2022, Kshs. 35,000,000

inJanuary 2023 md Kshs. 19,000,000 in February 2023. The purpose of these exchequer was to refund

money that was spent on Car Grant issued to members of the 2"'r Assembly in 2021 which made 97oh of

the total Revenues. The fund also realized interest income of Kshs 3,190,154 against a budget of Kshs.

3,200,000 which made 3oh of the total revenues.

Comparison of Budget and Actuals
income 2022/2023

100,000,000

90,000,000

80,000,000

70,000,000

60,000,000

50,000,000

40,000,000

30,000,000

20,000,000

10,000,000

Transfers from Exchequer Interest Income

a Budger a Actual Incomc

In Comparison tirh 2022/ 2023 there was a drastic change especially in the Interest revenue due to the

fact that New loans were issued in the year under consideration and hence higher interests were realized

from higher loans.

There was also no transfers from CRF in the previous yeat.

xtv
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Co ty Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Membets) scheme Fund
ual Repon and Financial Statement for yeer ended 3Oh June, 2023

Oonrparison of Income 2022 / 23 .tnd 2021 / 22

n

.{,,r)o0,000 .{o,000,0ff) @,000,00 80,000,0@ 100,000,(n0

.:0:l/:01:.10,)/10?i

Fu Expenses

g the year the Fund had total cxpenses of Kshs. 3,101,200 against a budget of Kshs. 7,000,000. its

noting that therc rvere no Committee expenses as earlier anticipated in the budget. The expenses

\A'e brokcn down as follows

Bank Charges - I(shs. 1200

Insurance payments- I(shs 3,100,000

a)

b)

Fund Expenses 202212023

I) ng the period of rwelvc months ended 30"'June 2023, the MCAs serviced their mortgage loans as

schecluled

T outPuts and outcomes

Ilv 30'r'June 2023, all the Members of the County Assembly of Embu (MCAE had received their

Itgages and continued to service the loans as rvas scheduled. The provision of these loan facilities at

\1()

o%

roo%

lT)

a Bank Charges

a lnsuarance payment

lt



County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh lune, 2023
a low interest tate has enabled MCAs to move efficiendy wrthin the County, live in constmctecl gooci

homes and hence they are well motivated to effectively' perform their toles.

The fund has managed to achieve value for money as members utilized the loans acquired for the

intended purposes.

The implementation challenges.

The main challenge faced during implementation of repayment of MCAs mortgages during the period

under teview was the delayed release of funds by the National Treasury to the County Assembly of Embu

which sometimes lead to delay in repayment of members' mortgage loans by one or two installments

which rs eventually paid later.

In genetal, the period under review was successful and good progress was made and the momentum has

been created to enable County Assembly of Embu Mortgage and Car loan fund continue on a traiectory

into prosperity. We have identified gaps and areas to improve on in the subsequent year.

Risk Management Srategies

The Fund just like any other Institutions, faces a myriads of risks in its opetations spanning from

Non-performing loans, death or incapacitation of members, recalling of individual Members by

members of the public among others.

To mitigate on this, the fund has made sure that all loans are insured and ensured that all loans are

secured either by collateral or guarantee from other members.

I take this opportuniry to thank County Assembly of Embu mortgage and car loan fund commtttee for

their support during the period under review and look forward to working with them in future.

SIG

JIM G 60 100'

F R

t,

?
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Co,Lty A"r.-bly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Membets) scheme Fund
Anrlual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Ot' June, 2023

7 STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST COUNTY ENTITYS
trnEoprsnMrNED oBJECTIvES

tf,t{oauctlo"

lI
$c[on l6a (2) (Q of the Public Finance Management A ct,20L2 requires that, at the end of each Frnancial

rf^1, ,fr. Accounung Officer when preparing financial statements of each Counry Government cntiry
I

$oternrn"nt enuties in accordance with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Scctot

,lc unting Standards Board includes a statement of the county government entity's performance against

Prc termincd ob jectir.es

rh kev developmcnt objectives of thc County Assembly of Ernbu N{ortgage and Car Loan fund arc to

a) Provide cheap Car loans to members to enable purchase of vehicles for to case their

movemcnt at 3o/o per Annum.

I b; lrorriae Mortgage loan to membe rs at of 3oh per annum

Prdgress on attainment of Strategic developmcnt obiectivcs

lhrE Couary Assembly has achieved its strategic development objective to provide mortgage and car

s 
^t 

3o/o to all honourable mcmbers and the Honorable Speaker. The total amount disburscd initial\'

Kshs. 165,000,000. This has facilitated members in their Legislative reptesentation and oversight

l<r

{ol[S as they can easily uavel from their Wards to the Counry Assembly offices and othet areas when

Jr"$rr^rr. This has also motivated the members of the County Assembly to work for improved service

tr"il-.o to citizcns

ltl
f.lo* *. provide rhe progress on attaining the stated objectivcs:

lln

:ls

Efficient

of MCAs

wards to

chambers

movemcn t

from the

Assembly

100% of the

members of the

County

Assembly have

received the

loans

l,oans

XVII

rt

To facilitate

Members of the

County

Assembly travel

efficiently from

the rvards to

Counry

In the Financial year

2022/ 2023 members

of the counry

assembly have

continued to repay

their car loan until



County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

ofAssembly

Embu

they wete converted

to car benefits

Nfortgages To support

members of the

counry assembly

construct

descent houses

Construction of

descent houses for

the members of the

Counry Assembly

100% of MCAs

have norv

constructed

decent houses

All MCAs have

utilized the loans as

intended and

constructcd deccnt

homes.

xv t

fionnanclPr
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d Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
for year ended 3Oh June, 2023
ATEMENT

oull ssembly of Embu Car & Mortgage Fund scheme is a revolving fund established pursuant

o[the PFM Act, and the Salaries and Remuneration Commission (SRC) circular number

/3/ 14 of 14'r' February 2074 and Section 167 of the Public Finance Management (?FNf)

tion 1 (t

012

andate is to provide mortgage and car loans to MCAs. The fund is committed to ensuring

L"toce with rcgulatory and supervisory corporate governance requiremcnts.

ttce havc been electcd to hold office for thc term 2022 to 2027 as the regulauons

Number of fund adminisration committee meetings held and the attendance to those

meetings by membets.

The attcndancc of the mceting has becn good and the Committee was able to hold 1,1 meetings

es at thc 30'r'June 2023. Almost every member attended the mcetings when convened.

Succession plan,

The board of trustee is appointed at the start of every term of nerv Assembly. 'l'hc majority

leader is an automatic mcmber of Embu county Asscmbly Service Board (CASBII).

The rcst of the board of trustee members are appointed from the MCAs. The key management

of staff are drarvn from the officcrs of the Counry Assembly of Embu who also include the fund

administrator, Dircctor lcgislative, procedural and Committee Services, Ditector Finance and

r\ccounung sen'iccs and the fund Accountant.

'I'he current Board will hold office for the period 2022 to 2027 tetm of the Assembly.

r Existence of a Board/Trustee Chattet,

Curently the fund has not developed a service charter.

. Process of appointment and temoval of trustees.

The tcrm of the administration Committee membcrs expires at the expiry of cach term o[ an

Assembly i.c. each Frve (5) year term. A nerv board of trustee wtll be appointcd during thc 2022 r<t

2027 Asscmbly term

o Roles and functions of the Boatd/Trustees,

The Board of trustee mcct as and when necessary to deliberate on matters as necessary which

includes:

-Considcrations of application of loans by MCAs

-Ilnsuring that amounts deductcd from members by the assembly are temitted to Winnas Sacco

Embu branch as rc<1ured.

jl'o perform any other function as guided by the Fund regulations.

xix

I

cor-r.rt.ni
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County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

o Induction and ttaining.

The Fund committee are usually inducted on their roles, duties and responsibilities at the start of

their term in office. However, a condnuous uaining will be necessary in future.

Board and member performance,

The board has performed as is expected and achieved its goals of administering car loan and

mortgages to members and ensuring monthly repayments of the loans.

Conflict of Interest,

Board of trustee members are advised to declare interest they may have and that could affcct

their performance in the board.

Board/Trustee Remunetation,

The fund administration Committee members are paid sitting allowances as per salaries and

remuneradon commission (SRC) approved rates.

Ethics and conduct as well as govetnance audit.

The fund has not undertaken any ethics or governance audit in the period under revierv

ra

a

o

a

xx
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ANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operational performance and hnancial performance

Committec was able to conduct 14 meetings in the year 2022-2023

ry of thosc meetings conducted in the financial yett 20222-2023 was as follows'

Resolution/ RemarksD te Main Agcnda

Resolutions.

Compressive report on car and mortgage.

-Members be paid their pending allowances.

Car loan and Mortgage (members) scheme Budget
2022-2023 discussed and Approved.

18 0/) ,,)/08 Report on loan disbursement
schcdule and allowanccs of
committee members.

The Car loan and Mortgage
(members) scheme fund budget
2022-2023

Members discussed and tesolved that MCAs
quali$, for Kshs 5,000,000 each as car loan and

Mortgage [acilities.

) .l /09 /2022 Operationalization of the car
loan and mortgage facility

It was resolved that the loans applications fotm be

adopted with amendments.
2 /09/2022 Operauonalization of the car

loan and mortgage facility.

0 /r0/2022 Approval and consideration of
members loan application

The committee membets discussed and resolved
that each MCA to be advanced Kshs 3,000,000 and

that each member to meet insutance cost of
100,000.s

Members resolved that members be issued with
approved loan applicauon forms.

2 /0e/2022 Operationalization of the car

loan and mortgage faciliry.

Operarionalization oI the car
loan and mortgage facility.

Insurance faciliry.

It was resolved that the issue of loan that insurancc
of loan facilities be procured as per the law.

2 09 22/20

Resolved that APA insutance insure members on
death and permanent drsability had been awarded

per the procurement law.

3 2022/0e / Operationalization of the car
loan and mortgage facility

The committee membets discussed and tesolved
that each MCA to be advanced Kshs 3,000,000 and
that each member to meet insurance cost of
100,000.

0 / 10/2022 Approval and considcration of
members loan application

It was resolved that the members be advanced the
loan balances and also advance the loan to one of
the external CASB member who had applied.

o / 12/2022 Consider and approve members
loan balances application

xxi



01/12/2022 Consider and approve members
loan balances application

It was resolved that the members be advanccd the

loan balances

05 /01/2023 Confirmation of
minutes and loan status

Prevlous It was reported that members were servicing the

loans advanced without any challenges. It rvas

resolved that the deductions continue as

scheduled to enable members clcar in time

It was agreed that the fund manager to ensure

prudent management of the fund to avoid any

pitfalls along the way.

2'7 /02/2023 After deliberation it rvas rccommcnded;

1. That N{s. Rose Vanjiru Gitiri be requested

to complete the revised form.
2. ^fh* securities for both applicants be

submrtted in the next meeting for further
discussion.

3. That a teport indicating the amounts
disbursed per member, repayments donc
and sterus of each loan be forwarded in the

next meeting for furthet discussion.

4. That the loan application for Hon. Josiah
M Thiriku be submitted in the next

meeting.
5. That report on Car Reimbursement bc

provided in the next meeung.

County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

b) Entity's key proiects or investments decision implemented ot on-going-

The main activiry of the fund is issuing loans to the members of the County Assembly and normallv

this is done at the srart of the members' term. The fund has no any capital project for the time bcing

nor has it made any investment decision on the same.

c) Fund's compliance with statutory requitements,

The fund has fully complied all relevant statlttes including PFN{ r\ct 2012, the County Asscmbll of

Embu Car loan and Mortgage (Members) Scheme fund regulations and all circulars from SRC. ;\ll

the statutory matters are dealt with by the Committee of the fund and in the year under consicleration

there were no material statutory arrears.

d) Major risks facing the fund

There is no major risk facing the fund, all MCAs have been given the loan and are repat'ing

them as scheduled.

xx ii
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rial arreats in statutory and othet financial obligations

fund do not have any arrears in starutory deductions nor any financial obligation

ding unpaid

othcr information

sucs have arisen in the course of the management of the fund which have been brought to

ttention of the management committee

xxiii
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10. ENVIROMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

1. Sustainability strategy and ptofile

To ensure sustainability of the fund the board of trustees jointly with key management staff ensure thc

mortgage loans are timely issued, repaid and key governance responsibilities are adhered to.

Thc fund is well funded and is utilized for the purpose intended for i.e. extend Car & mortgage to

members.

2. Environmental performance,

The fund has no environmental policy but uses the alteady existing environmental laws in her operations.

3. Employee welfate

The fund utilizes the staff of the County Assembly for performance of its duties. The wclfare, appraisals

and rervards are undertaken by county Assembly Service Board (CASB).

4. Market place practices

The fund utilizes the facilities and resources of the County Assembly of Embu.

a) Responsible competition Practice.

The County Assembly of Embu Car Loan mortgage Fund ensures responsible compeution pracuces bi,

ensuring any loan application is processed on a first come and first out basis to ensure every apphcauon

is given fair preference.

The election of Honourable members to the board of trustees is democtatically done and involves all

members of the County Assembly of Embu.

b) Responsible Supply chain and suPplier relations

'I'he fund relies on County Assembly of Embu for all her supply needs.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement

The fund reLies on County Assembly of Embu for all its markeung and adverusement rvhcre nccessan'

d) ProductstewardshiP.

The fund relies on the approved regulations to manage her operations rvhere the member's rights aod

obligations are well spelt out.

xx iv
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Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

is still young in terms of the number of years in operation, it has not yet started communih'

xxv
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II. REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES

The Trustees submit their repott together with the Financial Statements for the year endedJune 30,2022,

rvhich show the state of the Fund affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Fund ate to provide Car and Mortgage Loans to members of the Countv

Assembly.

Results

The performance of the Fund for the year endedJune 30,2023, are as set out on page 1 to 5

Trustees

There is no change in the membership as indicated from page Roman viii to Roman x. -Ihesc are thc

members of the committee that will run the fund unul the end o[ the cutrent term of 5 vears.

Audito rs

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance wrth r\rticle 229 of

the Constirution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015. For the year ended 30'r'June, 2023 the Office

of the Auditor General conducted the Audrt of the of the reports and the financial statements of thc

fund

HON. NYA P ER MURIITHI

CHAIR OFTHE BOARD / FUND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE.

4\. 2--ra.->

xxvl

-q*
DA'IIJ:



S

ssembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
eport and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023
EMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

67 oI

stra

the Public Finance Management Act,201.2 requires that, at the end of each financial ycar,

tor of a County Public Fund established pursuant to Section 11 6 of the Public Ftnance

ement Act and supplemented by SRC Circular No. SRS/TS/WH / 3 / 14 of 14'r' February 2014

Admrnistratot who is the Clerk to the Counry Assembly is rcsponsible for the preparation and

e Fund's financial statements, rvhich give a true and fair view of the state of affatrs of the

t the end of the financial year cnded on June 30,2023. This responsibiliry includes

Maintaining adcquatc financial management arrangements and ensuring that thesc continue to be

effective throughout the reporting period;

Nlaintaining proper accounting records, rvhich disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the fund;

Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparauon and fan

prcsentation of thc financial statements, and ensunng that they are free from matcnal

rnisstatements, rvhether duc to error or fraud;

Safguatding the assets of the fund;

App\'ing appropriate accounting policies; and

Making accounung cstimatcs that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Administrator acccpts rcsponsibiliry for thc lrund's financial statcments, which have becn preparcd

appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent )udgement and estimates, in

rmiq,with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS), and in the manner required by

FM Act, 2072 md Section 167 of the Pubhc Finance Management Act (PFMA) and supplemented

C Circular No. SI{S/1'S/WH/3/11of 14'r' February 2014

A

of

disuator futthcr confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Fund,

suator of the Fund is of the opinion that the Fund's financial statements give a true and fair

c tate of Fund's transactions during the financial year ended Jun c 30, 2023, and of the Fund's

tion as at tl.rat datc

have been relied upon in the preparation of the Fund's financial statements as well as the adequacy

systcms of internal financial control.

the ltnancial statcments, the Administrator of the County Public Fund has assessed the Fund's

ndnue as a going concern and disclosed, as applicable, matters relating to the use of going

ba is of preparation of the financial statements

P

cparing

to co

crnc
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Nothing has come to the attcntion of the Administrator to indicate that the Fund urll not remain a going

concern for at least the next nvelve months from the date of this statcment.

Approval of the financial statements

The Fund ! financial statements were approved by the Board on

behalf by:

2023 aod signed on its

JIM

xxv
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T o THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON COUNTY ASSEMBLY OF EMBU CAR
MORTGAGE (MEMBERS) SCHEME FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED

ention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
rl presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
ti g standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
fi ancial statements

LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
ia ce with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
tn and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
t, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government

value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

n Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
nsiders how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
s. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
ent environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
rged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the

opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
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g systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
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vtew

parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
ies of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 oI the Constitution, the

n ce Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts
, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General

N THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

prnron

d the accompanying financial statements of ,County Assembly of Embu Car
ortgage (Members) Scheme Fund set out on pages 1 to 30, which comprise

ment of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial
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performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actuai amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya, and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members)
Scheme Fund as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the yearthen ended, in accordance with lnternational Public SectorAccounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and do not comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and
the County Governments Act, 2012.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Non-Submission of Financial Statements for Previous Years

As reported in the previous year, the Fund commenced operations in June, 2014. During
this period (2014 - 2018), the County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage
(Members) Scheme Fund operated as two distinct Funds namely 'Car Loan Fund'
and 'Mortgage Scheme Fund' with each Fund having its distinct regulations both
enacted in 2014. However, the financial statements of the two Funds for the financial
years 201412015 to 201712018 were not submitted to the Auditor-General contrary to
Section 47(1) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, which states that the financial statements
required under the Constitution, the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and any other
legislation, shall be submitted to the Auditor-General within three months after the end of
the fiscal year to which the accounts relate.

However, in the absence of the previous year's financial statements, the source and
accuracy of the opening balances reflected in the financial statements for the year under
review could not be confirmed.

ln the circumstances, it has not been possible to confirm the source and accuracy of the
opening balances for the year under review. ln addition, Management was in breach of
the law.

2. Unsupported Prior Year Adjustments

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements
reflects prior year adjustment balance of Kshs.3,335,765 which has not been supported
by Journal vouchers explaining the transactions.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements could
not be confirmed.

3. lnaccurate and Long Overdue Unremitted Deductions

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements
reflects current receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.9,538,009 which
includes May and June interest receivable and principal repayments of Kshs.804,898
and Kshs.6,491,825 respectively. However, the ledgers reflect May and June interest

o
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receivable and principal repayments of Kshs.796,804 and Kshs.6,145,846 resulting to a
total variance of Kshs.354,073 which reiate to August, 2022 morlgage deduction which
was long overdue and had taken more than 10 months before being remitted to the Fund's
bank accounts. This is contrary to Section 19(4) of the Employment Act, 2007 which
states that an employer who deducts an amount from an employee's remuneration in
accordance with Sub-Section (1)(a), (f), (g) and (h) shall pay the amount so deducted in
accoldance with the time period and other requirements specified in the law, agreement
court order or arbitration as the case may be.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the receivables balance of Kshs.9,538,009 could
not b€ confirmed. ln addition, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Inaccuracies in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets

The gtatement of changes in net assets reflects accumulated opening deficit balance as
at 01 July, 2022 of Kshs.69,093,736 that differed with the prior year closing balance
of Kshs.69,602,028 resulting to unreconciled variance of Kshs.508,292. Further, the
accurnulated opening balance of Kshs.69,093,736 differed with prior year audited balance
of Kshs.70,088,722 resulting to unreconciled variance of Kshs.994,986.

ln addition, the statement reflects accumulated surplus closing balance of
Kshs,19,487,025 net of surplus for the year of Kshs.89,089,053 out of which
Kshs.89,000,000 were in respect of capital fund transfers during the year under review,
that have erroneously been reflected as receipts.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and presentation and disclosures in the statement of
changes in net assets could not be confirmed.

5. lnaccuracies in the Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows reflects increase/decrease in receivables of Kshs.582,616.
However, the statement of financial positions reflects current and long{erm receivables
balance of Kshs.9,538,009 and Kshs.154,636,375 alltotalling Kshs.164,174,384 against
prior year comparative balance of Kshs.8,955,393 and Kshs.746,059 respectively
all totalling Kshs.9,701,452 resulting to an increase of Kshs.154,472,932 that is at
variance with statement of cash flows amount resulting to unreconciled variance of
Kshs.153,890,316.

Further, the statement of cash flow also reflects comparative amounts that differed with
prior year audited amounts as detailed below;

Financial
Statements

(Kshs.)

Prior Year
Audited

Financial
Statements

(Kshs.)
Variance

(Kshs.)
Cash Flow from Operating Activities 0 6,318

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (5,123,769) (9,773,975) 4,650,206
Net Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities 47,819,780 (4,882,2Os)

Prior Year Adjustments (231,eee) 0 (231,999)

RQolt of the Auditor-General on County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund for
tht yfrr ended j0 June, 2023

l3

6,318

42,937,575

tl



ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the statement of cash flows
could not be confirmed.

6. Overstatement of lnsurance Expense Amount

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 4 to the financial
statements reflects use of goods and services amount of Kshs.3,101,200 comprising of
insurance cost of Kshs.3,100,000 and bank charges of Kshs.1,200. However, the
insurance cost of Kshs.3,100,000 relate to deductions made from the Members of County
Assembly. Further, no invoice or policy document was provided for audit. ln addition, the
award letter and professional opinion tender sum of Kshs.2,542,650 for provision of car
loan and mortgage insurance cover is in variance with the financial statement amount
resulting to unreconciled variance of Kshs.557,350.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the insurance expenses of Kshs.3,100,000 could
not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and
Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code
of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and
in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Performance and Control

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
of Kshs.93,200,000against actual receipts of Kshs.92,190,253 resulting to receipts short
fall of Kshs.1,009,747. Similarly, the statement reflects a final expenditure budget of
Kshs.86,200,000 against actual of Kshs.89,089,053 resulting to over expenditure of
Kshs.2,889,053.

ln the circumstances, the lawfulness of over expenditure of Kshs.2,889,053 could not be
confirmed.

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements. However, several issues remained unresolved contrary to
Section 149(2Xl) of Public Finance Managemenl Acl, 2012 which require Accounting

Report of the Auditor-General on County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Morlgage (Members) Scheme Fund for
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Officers designated for County Government entities to try to resolve any issues resulting
from an audit that remain outstanding.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures performed, I conflrm that public resources have not been applied
lawfully and in an effective way.

Basig for Conclusion

1. Defaulted Loans of the Scheme Fund

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements
reflects receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.9,538,009 which
includes Staff Car Loan and Mortgage Fund receivable of Kshs.2,000,000 transferred
from County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage Loan (Members) Scheme Fund

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements
reflects long{erm receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.154,636,375.
However, review of loanee's amortization schedules indicated three members defaulted
loan repayments of Kshs.400,150 in the month of October, 2022, November, 2022,
April, 2023 and May, 2023. However, no explanation was provided on why it was taking
long to institute recovery measures on the defaulted loans.

ln the circumstances, recoverability of the outstanding loans is in doubt. ln addition,
Management was in breach of the law.

2. Uninsured Loans

Note 6 to the financial statements indicates that loans amounting to Kshs.181,000,100
were disbursed to thirtythree (33) members. However, the loan disbursement schedule
indicates insurance deductions were made on thirty-one (31) members leaving two (2)
loans issued amounting to Kshs.10,000,000 uninsured contrary to Section 16 of the
Public Finance Management (County Assembly of Embu) Car Loan and Mortgage
(fulembers) Scheme Fund Regulalions,2022 which states that a member of the Scheme
shall insure the vehicle purchased through the Scheme and also take out and maintain a
mortgage protection policy with an insurance firm for the property acquired through the
loan from the Fund.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. lrregular Lending to Staff Car Loan and Mortgage

Rfoll of the Auditor-Ceneral on County Assembly of Enbu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund for
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bank account on 23 March, 2023. However, it was noted that the transfer of funds
appropriated for County Assembly of Embu Car and Mortgage Loan (Men\bers) Scheme
Fund to County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (StafQ Scheme Fund was not
approved by the County Treasury contrary to Section 154(1)(a) of the Public Finance
Management AcL,2012 which states that an Accounting Officer shall not authorise the
transfer of an amount that is appropriated for transfer to another County Government
entity or person and Section 47(1Xe) of the Public Finance Management (County
Governments) Regulations, 2015 which states that allocations earmarked by the County
Treasury for a specific purpose may not be used for other purposes, except with
Treasury's approval.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Lack of Specific Policy on Security Required for Members Car Loan and
Mortgage Scheme Fund

Note 6 to the financial statements reflects loans issued to thirty-one (31) Members of
County Assembly and two (2) external County Assembly Board Members during the year
of Kshs.181 ,000,100. However, no security was specified by the Members Car Loan and
Mortgage Scheme Management Committee contrary to Section 12 of the Public Finance
Management (County Assembly of Embu) Car and Mortgage Loan Members) Scheme
Fund Regulalions, 2022 which states that a loan approved under Regulation 10 shall be
released from the Fund in such manner, taking into account the security of the funds, as
may be prescribed by the Car Loan and Mortgage Scheme Management Committee.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

5. Unbalanced Budget

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final budget
revenue and total payments budget of Kshs.93,200,000 and Kshs.7,000,000 resulting to
unbalanced budget by Kshs.86,200,000. This is contrary to Section 31(c) of the Public
Finance Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which states that budget
revenue and expenditure appropriations shall be balanced.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on

Report of the Auditor-General on County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) Scheme Fund for
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Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that internal controls, risk management anci
overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standard
requires that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Gharged with Governance

II

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
staterhents in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
nece$sary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstetement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Audilor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statelnents described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in cornpliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
repodting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with televant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
govefnance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

AuditorGeneral's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staternents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with

the yebr ended j0 June, 2023
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Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always
detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
rnight be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
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I

ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am
required to draw attention in the auditc'r's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to sustain
its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA a CBS

I

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

17 April,2O24

the yedr ended 30 June, 2023

9
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County Assembly of Embu Cat Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement fot year ended 3Oh Juner 2023

16. Statement of Changes in Net Assets fot the year ended 30'h June 2023

Description Revolving
Fund

Revaluatio
n Reserve

Acc umulate
d surplus

Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Balance as at 1" luly 2021 165,000,610 (69,608,346) 95,392,264

Surplus/(Deficit) for the penod 6,31 8 6,318

Balance as at 306 June 2022 165,000,610 (69,602,028) 95,398,582

Balance as at lst July 2022 165,000,610 (69,093,736) 95,398,582

Surplus/(deficit) for the period 89,089,053 89,089,053

Funds received during the year

Balance as at 30.h June 2023 165,000,610 19.487,025 784,487,635

3



ty Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
al Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

I atement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30'h June 2023

202t-20222022-2023
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18. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for the period

ere approved on L 2023 ard signed by

Fu

Name:

W*
a

Fund Accountant
Kamau
ICPAK No. 8192

5

Receipt/Expense Item
Original
Budget

Adjustment
s

Final
Budget

Actual on
Comparable

Basis
Performanc
e Difference

o//o

Utilizatio
n

2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023

Revenue KShs KShs KShs KShs Kshs KShs

90,000,000 89,000,000 1,000,000Transfers from the Counw 90,000,000

9,747Interest Income 3,200,000 3,200,000 3,190,2s3 100

Other Receipts (Funds in Bank)

TOTAL 93,200,000 93,200,000 92,190,253 1,009,747

PAYMENTS
Fund Adminisuation Expenscs 3,500,000 3,s00,000 3,500,000

General Expenses 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,101,200 398,800 u9

Transfer to other Government Entitics

Total paymentu- 7,000,000 7,000,000 3,101,200 3,ggg,goo 44

suBffi-gflaEfttqNt. 86,200,000 86,200,000 89,089,053 -2,889,053

ts(]rz
di;lt)'

t+

99

99

103

+
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19. Nrirtcs to Financial Statcmcnts
General InformationI

[unry assembly of Embu car loan and mortgage scheme is established by and derives its authority

lountabiliry from Section 116 of thc PFM Act 2012 and the County Assembly o[Embu Car

[nd N{ortgage (Membcrs) schcmc Regulations. The schemc is wholly orvned by the County

fbly of Embu and is domiciled in I(enya. The schemes principal activity is lending Car loans and

N{{t$ges to rnembers of the County Assembly of Embu to facilitate them delivcr on their mandates

2. Statement of compliance and basis of prepatation

t hb Flnd's financial srarements havc bccn prepared in accordance with and comply wtth Intcrnational

I'ubli Sector Accounting Standarcls (IPSAS). The hnancial statements are presented in I(enva shillings,

is the functional and rcporting currency of the Fund. 'l'he accounting policies have bccn

COIISl ntly applied to all thc ycars presented

Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mofigage (Members) scheme Fund
Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

S 41: I;inar.rcial

Inst mcnts

rvhich

|hc ancial statements have been prcpared on the basis of historical cost, unless stated othenvisc. 'fhc

.^r[, fo.r.,",arnent is prepared using the direct method. The financial statements ate prepared on accrual

ba sis

3 Adoption of new and rcviscd standatds

(i) Rrllevant new standards and amcndments to published standards effective fot the year

cnLdcd 30 June 2023

II'S,,\{lB defened the application date of standards from 1'' January 2022 owtog to Covid 19. 'fhis rvas

.l"rfe flo provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. 
-fhe deferral was set for 1" Januarl

tir

1 31

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year

ed 30June 2023c

I

6

Applicable: t' lanuaty 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establsh principles fot the financial reporting

of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful

information to users o[ financial statements for their assessment of thc

amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Endry's future cash flows.

IPSAS .11 provides users of financial statements with more uselul

information than IPSAS 29, by:

Sthritlarr



County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Repon and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

. Applllng a single classification and measurement model for financial

assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the

objecuve fot which the asset is held;

. Applyrng a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; aod

. Applying an improved hedge accounung model that broadens thc

hedging arrangements in scope of the gtidance. The model develops a

strong link berween an Entity's risk management strategies and thc

accounting treatment for rnstruments held as part of the risk management

stfategy.

Applicable: l" lanuary 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

lepresentativeness and compatability of the information that a reporung

Entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The

information provided should help users of the financial statements and

general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity;

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial

performance, financial position and cash flows.

IPSAS 42: Social

llene fi ts

Amendments to Other

IPSAS resulting from

IPSAS 41, Financial

Instruments

7

Drangat

Applicable: 1st January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which rvere inadvertently omitted rvhen

IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, tegatding illustrative examples on hedging

and credrt risk which were inadvertendy omitted when IPSAS 41 was

issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for

financiel guarantee contracts which wete inadvertendy omitted rvhen

IPSAS 41 was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying financial

instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which rvere

inadvertendy omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
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Co Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Ann Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Ot'lune, 2023

iii) Early adoption of standards

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

S

8

Applicable f' January 2023

. IPS-45 22 Disclovn oJ F'inarcial I nJomatiort abott tbe General Coaernmenl

Seclor.

Amendments to refet to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

. IPSAS )9: Enplolu Bet$ts

Now deletes the term composite social securiry benefits as it is no longer

defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial insttuments: Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is norv

superseded by IPSAS 41 rvhich is applicable from 1"January 2023.

IP6.,\S 43 Applicable t' January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The obiective is to ensure that lessees

and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis fot users of

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows of an Entiry.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

informauon on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPS,\S J-l: Non-

Currcnt ;\sscts I Icld

for Salc ancl

Discontinuctl

PCratlorls

Applicable f' tanuary 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measuted

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held fot sale to be presented

sepatately in the statement of financial position and the results of

discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of

financial performance.

a) Revcnue recognition

fhc entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in ycar 2022.

Qth[r imprcn,ements to



t

II

County Assembly of Embu Cat Loan and Mortgage (Membets) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

Revenue fiom non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other governmcnt entities

Revenues from non-exchange uansactions with other government enuues are measured at fair value and

recognized on obtaining control o[ the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer is free

from condrtions and it is ptobable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset wrll

flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

Rcvenue from exchange transactions

Intercst incomc

Interest income is accrued using the effecuve yield method. The cffective feld drscounts estimated futurc

cash receipts through the expccted hfe of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount. 'fhc

method applies this feld to the principal outstanding to determinc intcrest income cach period.

b) Budget infotmation

The original budget for Fy 2022-2023 was approved by the County Assembly on July 2022. Subscclucnt

rcvisions or additional appropriations rvere made to the approved budget in accordance with spccific

approvals from the appropriate authoritles. The additional appropriations are added to the original budgct

by the entity upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordinglv,

the F-und recorded additional appropriations of zero amounts on the l'^Y 2022-2023 budget follo*rng the

govctning body's approval. The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the acrual income and

cxpenditure disclosed in the Frnancial statements. The hnancial statements are preparcd on accrual basis

using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statemcnt of Frnancial performance, rvhercas

the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the

accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as thc approved

buclget. r\ comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approvccl

budgct, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addiuon to

the Basis differcnce, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for diffcrences in

thc formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the

approved budget.

A statcment to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of

comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actual as per the statement of financial performance

has been presented under section 17 of these financial statements.

9



) Intangible Assets

gible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses

rnatll' generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and

enditurc is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in',vhich the expenditure is incurred

c lr^scful lifc of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indcfinite

e) Financialinstruments

giblc assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost oIintangible assets accluircd

non-elchangc transact-ion is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following initial rccognition,
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Collly *sembly of Embu Cat Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
,lr{rrSl nrport and Financial Statement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

c) i P{operty, plant and equipment
1t

atf nfrecO', plant and cquipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cdst lfinclud"s expcndrrure that is clirectiy attributable to the acquisition of the items. When signiFrcant
111

nftjfof propc.ry, plant and equipmcnt are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such

n{r,{ ^. 
individual assets wrth spccific useful hves and depreciates them accordingly. Likewisc, whcn a

,rf^j{t in.p"cuon is performed, its cost is rccognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
ll

af {f replaccrnenr if rhe recognition criteria are satisfied. All other tepair and maintenancc costs are

.i.{e.ir"a in surplus or deficit as incurred. \fl'here an assct is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for

rirJ fr oonunrl considcration the asset is initially measured at its fait value.
t1



County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mortgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Repon and Financial Statement fot year ended 3Oh June, 2023
Held-to-matudty

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed marurities are classiFred as

hcld to maturity when the Entity has the positive intention and abiliry to hold it to maruriry. r\ fter initial

measurement, held-to-marurity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium

on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest ratc. 'fhe losscs arising

ftom impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets

The Entiry assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a

entiry of financial assets is imparred. A Frnancial asset or a entity of financial assets is deemcd to be

imparred if, and only if, there is objective cvidence of impatrment as a result of one or more events that

has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event) and that loss evcnt has an

impact on the estimated future cash florvs of the financial asset or the entiry of Frnancial assets that can

be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the followrng indicators:

The debtors or a entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulry

Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

F Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial Iiabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabiliues within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial habilities at fair valuc throtrglr

surplus or dcficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Enuty determrnes the classiFrcation of its

financial liabiltties at iniual recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus

ditectly attributable transaction costs.

'a

'/

11



cognition, interest bearing loans and borrowrngs are subsequently measured at amortized

effective interest method. Gains and losses ate recognized in surplus or deficit when the

es are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method amortization process

d ost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisiuon and fees or

are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

pon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through

no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at

c

li

ing th

Z

C

ts in red in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for, as

terials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

F ed goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of

facturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

fter ini al recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Flowever, to

t that a class of inventory is distributed or deploycd at no charge or fot a nominal charge, that

ventory is measured at the lower of cost and curtent replacement cost

cuf

ows:

l{arv

n-I:ln

ass of

C

ltY ries are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumptron in the ordinary

of operations of the Entity(j

g) Ptovisions

ions are recognized rvhen the Enury has a present obligation (egal ot constructive) as a result of a

ent, it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic beneltts or servicc potcntial

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obhgationwill t)

72

Couoly As".mbly of Embu Car Loan and Moftgage (Memberc) scheme Fund
,l,tnt$l Report and Financial Statement fot year ended 3Oh lune, 2023
Loanp and borowing

D Inventories

hJet realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution.
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County Assembly of Embu Cat Loan and Mortgage (Membets) scheme Fund
Annual Repon and Financial Statement for year ended 30h lune, 2023
Vhere the Entiry expects some or all of a ptovision to be reimbursed, for example, undcr an ir.rsurancc

contract, the teimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursemcnt is virtualll'

certain.

'fhe expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of anv

reimbutsement.

Con tin gen t Iiabilities

f ire Entiry* does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any conungencies in the notes

to the ltnancial statemeflts, unless the possibiliry ofan outflow ofresources embodf ing econorruc benefits

or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Entiry does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details ofa possible asset rvhose existence

is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly

rvrthin the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed

continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has

become virrually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's

value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statcments

of the period in which the change occurs.

h) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entiry creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. Entitl to rlale lhe resenles

nainlained and @pnpiah pliciet adopted.

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes

in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

i) Employee benefits - Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retfuement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plans are

post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate enutv (a

fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not

hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relaung to employee service in the currcnt and prior

13

i) Changes in accounting policies and estimates
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s. Thc contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged agarnst

e in the year in which they become payable.

I) ned bcncfit plans arc post-employment benefrt plans othet than defined-contribution plans. 'I'hc

frned benefit lunds arc acruarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Deficits

entified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on proporuonal

sis to all particrpating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-

employmcnt benefi t obligauon

Tradsactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate o[ exchange on the date of

the transacuon. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign curlency are reported at the statement

of financial position reporung date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences

arising from the setdement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates diffetent from those

at rvhich they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period

in which they arise.

l) Borrowing costs

Botrowrng costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of properry, plant and equrpment. Such

borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or construct/

and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalizauon ceases when constnrction of the asset is comp'

Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

m) Rclated parties

n) Cash and cash equivalents tbp

?.1

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term de

Iiquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which

known amounts of cash and are subject to insigniFrcant risk o[ changes in v,

include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and ar various comrn

financial year. For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and ca

6a.r

'%."
d,ru .{o

t4

te4ec

a-

k) Foreign curlency tlansactions

The Entiry regards a related patty as a person or an entity rvith the ability to exert control ir
jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa. Members of ke

are regarded as related patties and comprise the ditectors, the CEO and senior manage,
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term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or instiutions rvhich were not

surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

o) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigurcd

to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Events aftet the repofting period

There rvere no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

p) Ultimate and Holding Entity

The Mortgage and Car loan fund is a County Public Fund established pursuant to section 16 of the PFM

Act 2012 under the County Assembly of Embu. Its ultimate parent is the County Government olEmbu.

q) Curency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

5. Significant iudgments and soutces of estimation uncettainry

'fhe preparation of the County Assembly of Embu financial statements in conformi6 with IPSI\S

rcquires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ()f

rcvcnues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of conungent liabiliues, at the end of tlrc

reporung period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomcs

hat require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liabiliry affected in furure penods

a)Estimates and assumPtions

e key assumptions concerning the furure and othcr key sources of cstimation uncertaintY at the

rting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adiustment to the carrying amounts of

and liabilities within the next financial ye^r, 
^re 

described belorv. The Counry Assembly of Embu

its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements

epared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about furure developments may change

arket changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the r\ssembly. Such changes ate

in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140.

15
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c li s and residual values

ves and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

rc use and value frorn drsposal

ndition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Embu County

b

a

tl

SC bl.v

e

c ature of the asset, its susceptibiliry and adaptabiliry to changes in technology and processcs

nature of the processes in rvhich the asset is deployed

bility of funding to replace the asset

/ anges in the market in relation to the asset

vlst()ns
sions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available

P visions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the

o tion at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. In thc

ancial ycar ending 30'r'Jun e 2022 the Assembly made no provtsions

tl
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5. Notes to the Financial Statements

. Use ofGoods and Services

1. Transfet from County Government

Fund opening Balance

Transfers from National 89,000,000

Total 89,000,000

rII
2. Othet Incomes

5,250,000September Tax Recovery

1,700,000Tax RecoveryI)eccmber
Tax Recovery 1,641,r20February

1,700,000Tax RecoveryJune
1,795,100Tax Recovcry

Iv{embers KRr\
Tablet Recovery

21,086,520Sub Total

3. I nterest Income

1,865 99,715Interest IncomeJul
90,1 15985Interest IncomeArg

102 80,+91S"P Interest Income
235,102 70,812Interest IncomeOct

61 ,170Interest IncomeNov
50,659318,1.29Interest IncomeI) cc

396,110 -10,936Interest IncomeJ^.
31 ,189388,31 1Intercst IncomeIicb
21,1t7116,223Interest IncomeNIar
11,621,-109,205Interest IncomeAPt
1,691.101,957Interest IncomeN{ay

39.1,390 3,048Interest Income
I Jun

565,8983,190,253Total\

66,177Management Expenses.lul
60,077Management ExpensesArg
53,660Management Expenses\S"P
11 ,228Management ExpensesPct
40,780Management ExpensesN.r'
33,772Management Expenses1".

17

12022-2023
I Kshs

Descdotior 202t-2022

Txsnv
I

20x2-2023
I(qhs

12021-2022

I Ksha
Deecription

I Descdftioh_- -r
2021-2022

Kshs IGhs
2022-2023

227,875

Description 2022-2023

IGh.
2021-2022

-f-
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ontributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are charged against

year in which they become payable.

t plans are post-ernployment benefit plans othet than defined-contribution plans. 'l'hc

t funds are acruarially valued tn-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Dcficits

covercd through lump sum payments or increased furure conttibutions on proportional

articipating employers. The contributions and lump sum payments rcduce the post-

efit obligationc

Fote ig.

1'

the

of cial position reporting date by applJnng the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differcnccs

tions in

saction.

currency transactions

foreign currencies are initially accounted lor at the ruling rate of exchange on the datc of

Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are repotted at the statement
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rowings have been incurred. Capitalizauon ceases when construction of the asset is complete

borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

Related parties

uty regards a related parry as a person or an entiry rvith the abiliry to exert control individually or

exercise significant influence over the Entiry, or vice versa. Members of key managctnent

a$ related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO and senior managers.

Ltq

kn

Cash and cash equivalents

d cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and highlv

vestrn€nts with an original maturity o[ three months or less, which are readily converuble to

arnouflts of cash and are subiect to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account balances

arnounts held at the Central Bank of Kenva end at various commercial banks at the cnd of thc

year. For the purposes ofthese financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short

l1-t

tir
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term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/ot insututions rvhich were not

surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial vear.

o) Compatative figures

\Where necessary comparative figutes for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured

to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Events after the repofting period

There were no material adjusung and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

p) Ultimate and Holding Entiry

The Mortgage and Cat loan fund is a County Public Fund established pursuant to section 16 of the PFN{

Act 2072 under the County Assembly of Embu. Its ultimate parent is the Counry Government of Embu.

q) Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).

5. Significant iudgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Counry Assembly of Embu financial statements in conformity w,rth IPSr\S

requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of thc

reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomcs

that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of thc asset or liabiliry affectcd in fun:rc pcnods.

a)Estimates and assumptions

The kev assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimauon uncertainry at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, Are described belorv. The County Assembly. of l]mbu

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available rvhen the consolidated financial statements

were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about furure developments may changc

due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Assembly. Such changes are

reflected rn the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140.

15
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s and tesidual values

es and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

use and valuc from disposal

tion of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Embu Counry

of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptabi-lity to changes in technology and ptocesses

of the processes in which the asset is deployed

of funding to replace the asset

the market in relation to the asset

e raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.

measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to setde the

c reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material. In the

ding 30'r'June 2022 the Assembly made no provisions

16



County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Mottgage (Members) scheme Fund
Annual Report and Financial Stetement for year ended 3Oh June, 2023

5. Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Use ofGoods and Servrccs

1. Transfer ftom Counry Government

Fund opening Balance

Transfers from National 89,000,000

Total 89,000,000

2. Other Incomes

September Tax Recoven' 5,250,000

December Tax Recoverv 1,700,000

Febman' Tax Recovery 4,641,120

June Tax Recovery 1,700,000

Tax Recovery 7,795,100

Members KR {
Tablet Recovery

Sub Total 21,086,520

IIIIII

3. Interest Income

J"l Interest Income 1,865 99,715

Interest IncomeArg 985 90,115

S"p Interest Income 102 80,.191

( )ct Interest Income 235J02 70,842

Nov Interest Income 227,875 (t1,'170

l) cc Interest Income 318.129 50,(r59

J^n Interest Income 396,1 10 40,936

Iicl: Interest Income 388,311 31 ,1 89

Interest ]ncome 11(>,223 21,111l\{ar

APt Interest Income -109,205 11,(t21

N{ay Interest Income '101,957 1,697

Interest Income 39.1,390 3,0.18Jr.
Total 3,190,253 565,898

IIII

.lul Management Expenses 66,177

Arg Management Expenses 60,077

Management Expenses 53,(r60S"P

Oct Management Expenses 17,228

Managemcnt Expenses .10,780Nov
33,772Dec Managemcnt Expenses

IIIIIr
t7

l_2022-202i
I Kqhe

I Dercdotion 2021-2022

Kehs

L__l

T
12022-2023

I xstrs
Deecription 2021-2022

Kshe

Descdptior 2022-2023 2021-2022

KehsKshs

Description

I IGhe
2022-2023 2021-2022

lkhs
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Management Expenses )1 )OiJ^^
I;cb Management Expenses 20,792

Management Expenses 14,278NIar

Management ExpensesAPt
NIay Management Expenses 3,131,

Ju. Nlanagcment Expenses

Jul Committee Allowances 33,238

,,\ug Committce Allowances 30,038

Sep Committcc Allowances 26,830

23,614() ct Committee Allowances

Nov Committce Allowances 20,390

I )cc Committec Allorvances 16,886

.l^., Committee Allorvances

Ite b Committee Allowances 10,396

N Iar Committee Allorvances 7,139

'\pr Committec Allowances 3,871

iUay Committee Allowances

Jun Committee Allowances 1,016

Lcdgcr fees.lul
Arg Ledger fees

S.P Ledger fees 7,920
()ct Ledger fees 7 0?n

Nov Ledger fees 7,920

l)ec Ledger fees 7,920

.f an Ledger fees 7,920

I;e b Ledger fees 7,920

i\ Iat Ledger fees

.\pr Ledger fees 7,920

IUal' Ledger fees 660

Ju. Ledger fees 220

Bank Charges on transfer t22
Bank Charges 1,200

Insutancc cost 3,100,000
Total 3,101,200 646,100

-{th October 2021 21,000,000

Total 21,000,000

18

7 ,717

2,032

1,3,615

t,566

'7 0)n
'7 0)o

7,920

-lth ()ctober 2022

5. Tax on Car Grant
2022-2023

IGh.
Description 202L-2022

lGhe

l'rans fer to KRA



6. Loans Issued

Augustin James N jeru

Gakungugu Agnes Wan jiru s,000,000

Gatumu Fredrick Mugendi 5,000,000

Githin ji Daniel Ng'ang'a

Githumbu Samuel N jeru s,000,000

Jimiah Jennifer 5,000,000

f osiah Mureithi Thiriku 21,040,1(t3

I(anyua Barbanas N jama 5,000,000

I(anrri Julius N jagi

I(avinda Mary Igoki .5,0( )( ),( )0( )

Kithinji Maurice Macharia 5,000,000

Kiura Murithi Niagi 5,000,000

NIati Yr.one I(arambu 5,000,000

5,000,000N1baka John Ngari
N{buchi Terry C Vanja 5,000,000

IrIbui Duncan Ireri 5,000,000

Irlunyambu Job In-rmo 5,000,000

3,000,000Nluriuki Masters Leonard

Nluthoni Susan Mwende s,000,000

5,000,000Nlunrri Harrison Sammy

N clwiga Nervton l(atiuki -1,000,000

5,000,000N jiru Anne Lily
N jiru Edwrn Muriithi s,000,000

N jiru Paul Muchangi 5,0(x),0(x)

5,000,000N jue Jane Iftrimi
N juki Johnson Mucangi s,000,000

Nyaga Maureen Kagendo 5,000,000

Nyaga Peter Muriithi 5,000,000

5,000,000Nyaga Susan Wairimu
Nzangr Phrlip Kiny,rn: 5,000,000

s,000,000Srvaleh Ibrahim
5,000,000Rose Wanjiru Gitari

Samuel Musau Muema 5,0(x),0(x )

181,040,763

40,663
Less loans balance from
previous period

181,000,100

IIIIIIIIIIIIIrIII
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2022-2023 2021-2022
T Kshs

Descriptior

5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000
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ash a d Cash Equivalents
)ilame of Bank, Account Number

Mortgage Family Bank Acc - 075000028013aC 3,222,805 87,104,952

CAE Intcrest lramily Bank r\cc - 0750000.12338 105,982 10,038

CAE Car loan and mortgagc Winas Sacco - 51100013001

Total 24,221,947 87,114,990

Ma1, Remittances 683,609

-f 
une l{emrnittance 176.381

Uqrecovered 'l'ax 7,795,100

May and Junc Interest ltcccivable
May and.|unc I)tincipal I-oan ltcpaymcnts 6,191,825

StatT Car l,oan and Nlortgagc l;und 2,000,000
( )verpaid l\lanagcmcnt fccs 211,.28(t

Total 9,538,009 8,955,393

) Tetm Re ceivables from Exchange Ttansactions
A Outstanding Loans

| .,\ugustin Jamcs N jeru 1,216,821

Gakungugu Agnes Wanjiru
Gaturnu Fredrick Mugendi 1,215,342
Ciithinji Danicl Ng'ang'a 4,215,342
(]ithumbu Sarnuel N jeru 4,21,5,342

Jirniah Jennilcr 4,215,312

.f ouah Nlureithi 'fhiriku 21,001,893 746,059

I(a:ryua Barbanas N jama 4,215,342
I(aruri Julius N jagi 4,215,342

I(avinda Nlary Igoki 1,215,342

Ktthinjt Itlauricc N{acharia

Kiura lr{urithi N jagi 1,21,5,342

Mati Yvone I(arambu +,215,312

Mbaka John Ngari 4,215,342
Mbuchi Terry C Wania 4,215,342
Mbui Duncan Ireri 4,215,342
Munyarnbu.f ob Irumo 4,215,342

T
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r
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20?2-2023
KFhs -

202t-2022cil-Description

20,893,160

8. f.cceivables from Exchange Transactions

2022-2023
K.fi-

202t-2022
K"h"-

80,l,u9il

2022-2023
K.h.

2021-2022
K^h.-

Desctiption

4,215,342

4,215,342
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11. Revolving Fund

N{uriuki Masters Leonard 2,536,838

N{uthoni Susan Mwende 4,215,342

N{ururi Harrison Sammy -1,215,312

Ndwiga Newton Kariuki 1 i77 i.rq
1,215,312N jiru Anne Lily

N jiru Edwin Muriithi 4,21,5,312

N jiru Paul Muchangi 4,215,312

N jue Jane Karimi 4,215,342

N jukr Johnson Mucangi 4,215,312

Nyaga Maurcen l(agendo 4,215,312

Nyaga Peter Muriithi 1,215,342

4,215,312Nyaga Susan Wairimu
+,215,312Nzangi Philip Kin1uru

Swaleh Ibrahim 1,215,342

Rose Wanjinr Gitari 4,844,613

4,841,613Samuel Musau Muema

Total 154,636,375

III

5,163Accrued Management fees

Accrued Ledger Fees u80

2,5r'ilAccrued Committee 2,581

1,177 ,237Overpaid Loans

13,(XX)CRF - Tablet Recovery

Accrued Insurance 557,350

Total 572,931 1,185,861

IIIIIII

165,000,610 165,487,303Balance

(48(,,693)

165,000,610 165,000,61030th June 2023 Balance C/d

III

830,530Surplus 2019

12. Accumulated Surplus

21.

746,059

E
H

10. Accounts Payables

2022-2023

IG*fr.

Descriptior 207t-2022

Kshs

2022-2023

K"h.
12021-2022

lrcns
I Descriptior

2021-2022

Kshs
Deecription 2022-2023

Kshs
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ar Adiustments

Balances

party transactlons

m Related parties

(343,837)-l- D"f^t r0ro
(70,09s,039)l)eficit for thc ycar 2021

6,31 8Surplus 2022
(69,602,028)Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) C/d 30th June 2022

89,089,053Surplus 2023

19,487,025Accumulatcd Surplus/(Deficit) C/d 30th June 2023

ryrlP o

Re vol r.ing Fund
1,65,487,303llal at I( e as ar 30/06 /2021
16s,000,610Ini tial Revolving Fund as at 30thJune 2019

486,693Ad lus tment
Ad d

238,490llc por 'ted Prepayments June 2020

356,095Ac tua I Prepayments 30th June 2020

Su SPC nse Account 2019 (137,089)

231,999Total
Su SPE nse Account 2022-2023

R l:rtc I p

A. lclz ,tec

89,000,000 00Tr irn s fer from County Govt.

(-x)

Balance C/d 89,000,000 00hJ une 2023

uc Ft

2,000,000 00

00

l:o :hJ une 2023 Balance C/d 2,000,000 00
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lr
lt!
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14.

2022-2023Description
Kshs

2021-2022

IGhs

(Lt1,605)

3,335,765

2022,-2023

K"h" t
202L2022
Kshs

Description 2022,-20?3 2021-2022

I IGhs lKshs
Due from Staff fund
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20. Ptogress on Follow up of the Prior Year Audito/s Recommendations
The following is the summary o[ issues rarsed by the extemal auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal

persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Ref

No

Issue/Observation From The Auditor Management Responses

Non-Submission of Financial Statements for Previous Years

As reported in the previous year, the Fund commenced operations inJune,2014. Dunng
this period (2014 - 2018), the County Assembly of Embu Car Loan and Nlortgage

(lvlembers) Scheme Fund operated as two distinct Funds namely 'Car Loan Fund' and
'Mortgage Scheme Fund'with each Fund having its distinct regr:lations both enacted in
2014. However, the financial statements of the two Funds for the financial years

2011/2015 to 2017 /2018 were not submitted to the Auditor-General contrary to
Secnon '17(1) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, which states that the financial statements

required under the Constitution, the Public Finance N{anagement Act, 2072 and any

other legislation, shall be submitted to the Auditor-General within three months after
the end of the fiscal year to which the accounts relate.

In the circumstances, it has not been possible to confirm the source and accuraq o[ the

opening balances for the year under review.

The Car loan and mortgage (members) fund management
committee plans to prepare and submit the pending
financial statements as per the auditor's recommendadon.

2 Unbalanced Statement of Financial Position

The statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022 reflects a balance of

Kshs.95,630,580 in respect to net assets and net financial position. However, a

recast of the net financial position gives Kshs.95, 166,402 resulting to a variance

of Kshs.46.1, 178 rvhich was not explained. Further, the net financial balance of

Kshs.95, 630,580 differs rvith the total equiq' balance of Kshs. 165,193,263

The correct position as at 30June 2022 is Ksh.95,

630,580. The different recast flgure was due to an error

in the initial posted figures which has since been

cofrected.

z>

1
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In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the balances in the

statement of financial position could not be confirmed.

of Kshs.69, 862 683 the periodedrc\.1s txS cm tCN fo chan nln ASct forsetsgcs

undet rcvicw.

J Inaccurate RevoMng Fund

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 12 to the financial

statements reflects revolving fund balance of Kshs.l65, 000,610 which differs

with statement of changes in net asser balance of Kshs. 165,487,304 resulting to

unexplained variance of Kshs.486, 694. Furthet, Note 12 to the financial

statements on revolving fund reflects unsupported prior year adiustments of

Kshs.486, 693 which was not supported with a joumal, nartation and supporting

documents.

In the circumstances, the accuracy of the revolving fund balance could not be

con6rmed.

The revolving fund amount of Ksh.165,000,610 was

erroneously carried from the FY 2021/2022 to trY

2022/2023 as Ksh.165,487,304 which represents the total

net assets; Ksh.486,694 being the accumulated surplus as

at 1"July 2020

Refer to the statement of changes in net assets

try2021/2022

4

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 13 to the hnancial

statements reflects accumulated deficit of Kshs.69,602,209 which differs with

accumulatcd surplus of Kshs.6,318 reflected in statement of changes in net assets

resulting to unexplaincd variance of Kshs.69,608,527.

Inaccurate Accumulated Deficit 'fhis resulted from an arithmetic errot. The actual figure

is Ksh.69, 602,028 which is gotten after adjusting (
/69,608,316+6318). It was initially omitted.
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In the circumstances, the accuracv of accumulated deFrcit could not bc confirmed

5 Unsupported Prior Year Adiustment

The statement o[ financial position and as disclosed in Note 1-1 to the financial

statements reflects prior year adiustments of Kshs.231,999 rvhich includes

adjustment of Kshs.486,693, suspense account of Kshs. 137,089 and differences in

June, 2020 prepayments of Kshs.117,605 rvhich were not supported with joumal

entries, narrations and supporting source documents.

In the citcumstances, the accuracy of the prior year adiustments balance of

Kshs.231,999 could not be confirmed.

The amount of Ksh.231,999 is the net adjustment value

carried to the financial statement. (.186,693- 137,089-

1 17,60s).

137 ,089 is the difference between actual and reported

prepayment in the FY 2019 /2020.

Ksh.137 was the amount in the suspense account in

2019.

Ksh.486,693 is the accumulated surplus as at 30June

2020.

6 Inaccurate Statement of Changes in Net Assets

The statement ofchanges in net assets reflects accumulated surplus balance as at 30

Jtne,2022 o[ Kshs.6,318 while thc recomputed balance amount to accumulated

deficit of Kshs .10,088,722 resulting to a variance of Kshs.70,095,0-10.

In thc circumstanccs, accutacy of the statement of changes in net assets could not

be confirmed.

The vanance represents the deficit for the FY 2020 / 2021

The accumulated surplus of 6,318 stated as at 30'hJune

2022 was erroneous, and has been corrected.
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Ksh.6, 318 Represents the surplus for the FY 2021/2022.
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c stateme nt o[ cash florvs includcs rcccipts from opcrating actir.itics of Kshs.13,

29L,120, fund administration expense of Kshs.1, 734,173, committee expenses of

Kshs.330, 500 and proceeds from principal loan repayments of Kshs.47, 819,873

rvhich rvere not supported.

Further, the following inaccuracies relating to the balances reflected in statement of

cash flows wete also noted:

i) Unsupported Differences in Ptoceeds ftom Ptincipal Loan Repayments

The statement of cash flows reflects proceeds from loan principal repayments of

Kshs.47, 819,780 which differs with Annex 2 and Annex 3 to the Management

response which reflects principal repayment of Kshs.40, 320,479 resulting to a

difference of Kshs.7, 499,301.

The values as initially stated ((sh.13, 291,120,1,131,473,

330,500 md 47,819,873) were erroneously pasted in the

rvord document.

However, the same has been corrected through the

revised statement of cashflows.

The actual principal loan repayment is Ksh.42,937,575 i.e

(13,683,61+716,059) as per the workings in Note.10

ii) Unsupported Differences in Receipts ftom Other Opetating Activities

The statement reflects receipts from other operating activities of Kshs. 13,291 ,120

while the statement of financial performance reflects total receipts of Kshs.21,

652,418 resulting to a difference of Kshs.8, 361,298.

The acrual receipts from operating activities is Ksh.21,

652,413. The amount in the cashflow statement (IGh.13,

291,120) was eroneous and has been corrected.

iii) Unsupported Differences in Fund Administration Expenses

The statement reflects fund adminisuation expenses amount of Kshs.l,734,,173.

The accrued management fees brought fonvard rvas Kshs. 1 ,129,415 and the

The fund administration expenses of Ksh.1,734,473 rvas

erroneously casted in the word document and has now

been corrected to Ksh.377,266 undcr Note.4

26
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cxpense for the year was Kshs.377,266 rvhile Kshs.1,73-1,.173 was paid resulting to

a balance carried down of Kshs.72,208 rvhich differs with accrued management

fees of Kshs.5,163 reflected in Note 11 to the financial statements bv Kshs.67,0.15.

In the circumstances, the accuracy of the statement of cash flows could not be

confrmed.

8 Unsupported Original and Final Budget Balances and Lack ofApptoved

2021/2022 Budget

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects total original

and final budgeted receipts and expendirure of Kshs.21,652,418 which werc nor

supported with approved budget. This is contra4'to Section 129(3) and (.1) of the

Public Finance lvlanagement Act, 2012 which states that each County Assembly

Clerk shall prepare and submit to the County Assembly the budget estimates for

the County Assembly and a copy shall be submitted to the County Executive

Committee Member for Finance and that County Executive Committee Member

for Finance shall prepare and present his or her comments on the budget estimates

presented by the County Assembly Clerk.

In the circumstances, the accuracy of the statement of comparison of budget and

actual amounts could not be confirmed.

The supporting ledgers are available in note 2 and note 3

i.e. (21,086,520 + 565,898)

9 Unsupported Other Income

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 2 to the financial

The supporung ledgers are available in note 2 and note 3

i.e. (21,086,520 + 565,898)



. .^.,-! '"--^4--.
ADnud Report d Fi,ncirt sr,teneht fot ycar ekdcd 3d hDe, 23

In the orcumstan thc accura and completencss o[ othcr income of

10. Inaccuracy in the Cuttent Receivable

The statement of financial position and as discloscd in Note 9 to the financial

statements reflccts current receivable balance of Kshs.8,955,393 which further

includes adjustment of Kshs.594,620 that rvas not supported.

Further, Note 9 to the financial statements reflects June, 2022 remittance of

Kshs.476,384 but the IPPD by product provided reflects Kshs.565,373 resulting

to unreconciled variance of Kshs. 118,236.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of current receivable balance of

Kshs.8,955,393 could not be confirmed.

The hgure Ksh.8,955,393 was correcdy indicated as per

the listing in Note.10 of the financial year 2O27-2022

11. Unsupported Long-Term Receivable

The statement o[ financial position and as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial

statements reflects long term receivables from exchange transacdons balance of

Kshs.746,059 which was not suppotted.

Further, the long-term receivables decreased by Kshs.42,937,535 from

Kshs.43,683,644 reflected tn 2020 / 2021 financial statements. Horvever, the

decrease of Kshs.42,937,585 varies with proceeds from principal loan repayments

of Kshs.47,819,780 reflected in statement o[ cash flows resulting to unreconciled

The actual principal loan repayment is Ksh.42,937,585 as

opposed to Khs.47,819,780 which rvas an earlier mis

casting in the financial statements.

However, thc same has been reviewed and corrected as

per note 10.

-
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difference of Kshs..1,882,1 95.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness oflong-term receivables from

exchange transaction balance of Kshs.7-16,059 could not be confirmed.

t2 Unsupported Accounts Payables

The statement o[ financid position and as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial

statements reflects accounts payable - deposit and retention balance o[
Kshs.1,185,861 rvhich includes accrued Management fees of Kshs.5,163 which was

not supported with ledgers, invoices, committee meeting attendance registers and

schedules of unpaid allowances.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the balance of

Kshs.1,185,861 could not be confirmed.

The amount of Ksh.5,163 was the amount owed to

Family Bank as at 30'h June 2022.

Exceeding Membership of Car Loan and Mottgage Scheme Management

Committee

The repott of Fund Administration Committee attached to the financial statements

for the year ended 30 June,2022 indicates that the Committee had 12 membets

contrary to Section 6Q) of Public Finance N{anagement (County Assembly ol
Embu) Car Loan and Mortgage (1\{embers) Scheme Fund Regulations, 201 9 which

provides the maximum number of committee members as ten (10). No authoriq'

was provided for having the additional two members of the Committee.

The appointing Authoriw was therefore in breach of the law

The auditor's recommendations have been noted and

necessar), corrective action will be taken.
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I nc auoltors fccommendauons havc Dccn noted ancl

necessarlr corrcctive action havc alrcady been initiatcd as

14.

In thc audit report of the previous vear, several issues rvere raised under the Report

shorvn in the revised financial statements

Section 149(2)(l) of Public Finance N{anagement Act, 2012 which require

Accounting Officers designated for Counq, Govemment entities to try to resolve

anY lssues from an audit that remain outstandin

r DEC ?c23

LER

Jim G.

e County Assembly
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